
 

Town of Green Mountain Falls 
10615 Green Mountain Falls Road 

Planning Commission Meeting Agenda 
Tuesday June 11th 2024, at 6:30 pm 

 
Join Zoom Meeting 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81173073943?pwd=JLivQaXd3ZN9VQJabvRdcX8avlJqid.1 
Meeting ID: 811 7307 3943                                                       Passcode: 848456 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER / ROLL CALL / TECH CHECK 
 
2. ADDITIONS, DELETIONS, OR CORRECTIONS TO THE AGENDA 
 
3. CONSENT AGENDA 
Approval of Meeting Minutes from 2024-05-14 
 
4. PUBLIC INPUT: 3 Minutes per speaker 
 
5. REPORTS 
    a) Commissioners 
    b) Staff 
 
6. Public Hearing 10565 Foster Variance 
 
7. BUSINESS 
     a) 10565 Foster Variance 

b) Staging Policy 
c) Selecting Chair & Co-Chair 
d) PC Comp Plan Proposal 

  
8. CORRESPONDENCE 
 
9. DISCUSSION ITEMS 
 
10. ADJOURNMENT 

The Next PC Meeting will be held on 2024-07-09.  

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81173073943?pwd=JLivQaXd3ZN9VQJabvRdcX8avlJqid.1


TOWN OF GREEN MOUNTAIN FALLS 

Planning Commission Special Meeting 

2024-05-14 at 6:30 P.M. 

 MEETING MINUTES 

 

Commission Members Present                                      
Ann Esch 
Rocco Blasi 
Mike Frey 
Lisa Bonwell Co-Chair 
Brandy Moralez 

Commission Members Not Present 

Town Clerk 
Bo Ayad 

Town Manager 

Becky Frank 

 

 

1. Call to Order & Roll Call 

Co- Chair Lisa Bonwell called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m.  Roll was taken 
and all commissioners were present in person. BoT Members Present: Todd 
Dixon, Don Walker & John Bell.  

2. Additions, Deletions, or Corrections to the Agenda 

Commissioner Blasi made a motion, seconded by Commissioner Frey, to accept 
the agenda as amended. Motion passed unanimously. The amendment was to 
remove item 8a. 

3. Consent Agenda 

Minutes from 04/09/2024. Commissioner Blasi made a correction on Item 5- 
Reports should be Commissioner Blasi and not Commissioner Frey. Commissioner 
Blasi motioned to approve the minutes as amended, seconded by Commissioner 
Moralez . Motion Carried.  

 

4. Public Input 3 Minutes Per Speaker 

John Bell presented a handout related to the usage of staging areas in Town. 



 

  

 

Don Walker suggested that a Staging Policy would be a good guiding addition to  
Town practices.  

5. Reports.  

Ben Thurston & Julie Esterl of Baseline Engineering presented a Staff Report on 
Planning Best Practices based on the Town MuniCode.  

  

6. Business 

6a) Staging Policy 
The TM led a discussion on proposed changes in the Draft Staging Policy. 
Commissioner Esch suggested that the policy may not be necessary as the items 
contained are addressed in the new Land Use Code. Commissioner Blasi voiced 
the need for the policy to be used as a supplement to the LUC. Blasi supported 
the use of existing devices such as the Temporary Use Permit. Discussion to be 
tabled until June so Commissioners can spend time with the proposed changes. 
Blasi so motioned, seconded by Moralez. Motion Carried.  
6b) Selection Chair & Co Chair 

Bonwell motioned to table until June Meeting. Seconded by Blasi. Motion carried. 

6c) Comp Plan Proposal 

Commissioner Blasi led a discussion on the need to review the 5-year-old Comp 
Plan and highlighted the steps and timeline. A discussion took place about vision 
statements. Commissioner Blasi Motioned to meet in a Work Session on May 28th 
to discuss what items to update if any. Seconded by Commissioner Moralez. 
Motion Passed Unanimously.  

7. Correspondence. 

None.  

8. Discussion Items.  

 

9. Adjournment  

Meeting adjourned at 8:29pm by Co-Chair Bonwell. 



Town of Green Mountain Falls 
PO Box 524, Green Mountain Falls, CO  80819    719-684-9414 
greenmountainfalls.colorado.gov 

 

GMF-24-03 10565 Foster Ave Variance  Page 1 of 5
  

 
PLANNING COMMISSION Date Prepared: June 6, 2024 

STAFF REPORT Meeting Date: June 11, 2024  

 

RE:  Variance to Front Setback – 10565 Foster Avenue 

To:  Town of Green Mountain Falls Planning Commission 

From:  Julie Esterl, Baseline Corporation 

Project Number:  GMF-24-03 

Project Address:  10565 Foster Avenue 

Applicant:  Don Hays 

Property Owner:  Don Hays 

Zoning:  R-1 – Low-Density Residential 

CC: Becky Frank, Town Manager 

Ben Thurston, AICP, Baseline 

  

 

MATTER BEFORE THE PLANNING COMMISSION 

A variance to encroach fifteen (15) feet into the front setback to allow the reconstruction of the existing 

stairs and the construction of a new deck at 10565 Foster Avenue.  Section 12-51 of the Green Mountain 

Falls Land Use Code (LUC) establishes Town Staff as the reviewing body, and the Planning Commission as 

the decision-making body for a variance. 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends that the Planning Commission APPROVE a variance of fifteen (15) feet to the front 
setback to allow the reconstruction of the existing stairs and the construction of a new deck at 10565 
Foster Avenue. 
 
BACKGROUND 

The existing single-family residence was 

constructed in 1920.  Access to the building 

is from Foster Avenue via a set of stairs that 

climb up to the front door.  The existing 

stairs extend into the front setback as well 

as into the Foster Avenue public right-of-

way.  In recent years the stairs have 

become unsafe and the property owners 

would like to replace the stairs and 

construct a new deck that will provide a 

landing.  In 2023, the owners requested, 

and were granted a 12’ x 46.22’ easement 

to occupy the right-of-way at 10565 Foster 

Avenue.  Approval of a variance is required 

before the owners can apply for building 

permits for the deck and stairs. 
Location Map 

Subject 

Site 



Town of Green Mountain Falls 
PO Box 524, Green Mountain Falls, CO  80819    719-684-9414 
greenmountainfalls.colorado.gov 

 

GMF-24-03 10565 Foster Ave Variance  Page 2 of 5
  

APPLICATION  

On August 3, 2023, the property owner, 

Don Hays, submitted an application for a 

Variance for the property at 10565 Foster 

Avenue.  Processing of the variance 

application awaited the approval of the 

right-of-way easement as well as the 

engineering review of the grading and 

erosion control plan (GECP) associated with 

the plans for the construction of the new 

deck.  The easement was approved by the 

Town Board of Trustees on December 10, 

2023, and was fully executed on March 11, 

2024.  The GECP was approved by the Town 

Engineer on May 7, 2024. 

 

ZONING AND LAND USE 

Prior to 2022 and the adoption of the existing Land Use Code (LUC), the property was zoned R-1 – Single 

Family Residential.  In 2022, the LUC was amended, and the property was rezoned from R-1 – Single Family 

Residential to R-1 – Low-Density Residential.   

 

The property is occupied by a single-family dwelling, which is a permitted use in the R-1 district.  The 

minimum building setback from a front property line in the R-1 district is 15 feet.  Per Section 12-44(b), 

decks may exceed the minimum setback by no more than 33 percent.  Because the proposed deck will 

cross the front property line and encroach into the right-of-way by approximately 2 feet, the applicant is 

requesting a variance to encroach the full 15 feet into the front yard setback.  In addition, the existing 

stairs encroach into the Foster Avenue 

right-of-way.  The 15-foot variance, if 

approved, will allow the existing stairs to be 

reconstructed in their existing location. 

 

The applicant has explained in the project 

cover letter that the exterior improvements 

will improve the view of the property from 

the street, and will increase the safety of the 

access to the residence.  In addition, the 

proposed deck will provide a landing at the 

top of the stairs, and will help prevent 

further erosion of a portion of the front yard 

currently caused by direct rain and hail.  

 

  

Easement Exhibit 

Approved 

Easement 

Proposed 

Deck & Stairs 

Proposed Plan 

EXISTING HOUSE 



Town of Green Mountain Falls 
PO Box 524, Green Mountain Falls, CO  80819    719-684-9414 
greenmountainfalls.colorado.gov 

 

GMF-24-03 10565 Foster Ave Variance  Page 3 of 5
  

 
June 2023 Google Streetview of the subject property 

 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN REVIEW 

Staff finds that the proposal is in conformance with the Green Mountain Falls Comprehensive Plan. The 

existing single-family land use is consistent with the plan’s Future Land Use Map.  The proposed variance 

will allow the applicant to improve and maintain the property. In addition, the proposal is supported by 

the plan through the following goals: 

• Goal 3.1.2: Residential Quality – Encourage and maintain safe and comfortable residential 

environments. 

Staff finds the proposed variance allows the applicant to maintain the existing residence in a safe 

manner. 

• Goal 3.2.1: Public Safety / Emergency Services – Provide adequate police and fire protection 

throughout the Town. 

Staff finds the proposed variance will improve access to the residence for emergency services. 

• Goal 3.4.1: Responsible Development – Ensure responsible, appropriate, and compatible growth 

in Town.  Policy A. Support development that enhances a sense of community and is compatible 

with surrounding land uses, the natural environment, and the community’s expectations. 

Staff finds the proposed variance allows improvements to the residence’s entrance that are 

compatible and meet expectations for quality. 

 

PUBLIC NOTICE 

Section 12-52(h) of the LUC establishes requirements for public notice when public hearings are required 

with land use review.  A variance requires published, mailed, and posted notice at least 15 days prior to 

the public hearing.  All required notices were completed in conformance with the LUC. 

  

The large tree closest 

to the house will be 

preserved by 

constructing the deck 

around the tree trunk. 



Town of Green Mountain Falls 
PO Box 524, Green Mountain Falls, CO  80819    719-684-9414 
greenmountainfalls.colorado.gov 

 

GMF-24-03 10565 Foster Ave Variance  Page 4 of 5
  

PUBLIC COMMENTS 

Town staff received one response from the public regarding the proposed variance.  The concern was in 

regards to existing building improvements and septic system encroachments on to property located at 

6885 Howard Street.  Staff understands that encroachments may exist, and that the resolution to any 

existing side and rear encroachments are a private matter between the neighboring property owners.  

Staff finds no encroachments on neighboring properties related to the proposed variance. 

 

FINDINGS 

The application was submitted in compliance with the Land Use Code.  General approval criteria findings 

are outlined in the following table. 

 

Sec. 12-52(i)(2) – General Approval Criteria 
Staff 

Finding 
Rationale 

a) Complies with applicable requirements 
including this land use code, town, state, 
and federal law; 

Yes The application complies with applicable 
codes and regulations. 

b) Consistent with any applicable adopted 
Town plans; 

Yes The application complies with applicable 
Town plans, including the Comprehensive 
Plan as outlined in staff’s analysis. 

c) Promotes the public health, safety, and 
general welfare; 

Yes The proposed variance will allow for the 
development of safe access to the existing 
residence. 

d) Minimizes or mitigates adverse impacts 
associated with the application; 

Yes Staff finds no substantial adverse impacts 
associated with the proposed variance. 

e) Will not result in significant adverse impacts 
upon the natural environment including air, 
water, noise, stormwater management, 
wildlife, and vegetation, or such impacts 
will be substantially mitigated; and 

Yes Staff finds no substantial adverse impacts 
in regards to the natural environment 
associated with the proposed facility.   

f) Will not result in significant adverse impacts 
upon other property in the vicinity of the 
subject property. 

Yes Staff finds no substantial adverse impacts 
to adjacent properties associated with the 
proposed facility.   

 

  



Town of Green Mountain Falls 
PO Box 524, Green Mountain Falls, CO  80819    719-684-9414 
greenmountainfalls.colorado.gov 

 

GMF-24-03 10565 Foster Ave Variance  Page 5 of 5
  

Additional Variance approval criteria findings are outlined in the following table. 

Sec. 12-57(a) – Additional Approval Criteria 
Staff 

Finding 
Rationale 

a) Not be injurious to the public health, safety, 
morals, and general welfare of the 
community; 

Yes Staff finds no potential injury to the public 
health, safety, morals, and general welfare 
of the community as a result of the 
proposed variance. 

b) Not substantially affect the use and value of 
the area adjacent to the property included 
in the variance; and; 

Yes The proposed variance does not impact the 
use of the adjacent area.  The proposed 
improvement and investment in the 
property could have a positive impact on 
the value of the adjacent area. 

c) Sufficiently demonstrate that the strict 
application of the terms of this land use 
code will result in practical difficulties in the 
use of the property, that the practical 
difficulties are peculiar to the property in 
question, and that the variance will relieve 
the practical difficulties. 

Yes Strict application of the front setback 
would result in practical difficulties because 
it would prevent the applicant from 
repairing the existing stair to provide safe 
access to the residence.  The variance 
relieves that difficulty.  Strict conformance 
to the code would require either 
reconstruction or substantial remodeling of 
the residence. 

 

SUMMARY 
The applicant, Don Hays, has submitted a complete application for the review of a Variance to the front 

setback to allow the reconstruction of the existing stairs and the construction of a new deck at 10565 

Foster Avenue.  The application is in general compliance with the Land Use Code. 

 

ALTERNATIVE ACTIONS 

1. Motion to approve, with or without conditions, supported by findings 

2. Motion to deny supported by findings 

3. Motion to continue to a future meeting date with a reason and/or request for more information 

 

Attachments:

1. Combined Application 

a. Variance Application 

b. Project Cover Letter 

c. Project ILC 

d. Approved Grading Plan 

e. Proposed Deck Plans 

2. Approved Easement Agreement 

3. Public Comment Letter 



 
 

Town of Green Mountain Falls 
Land Use Approval Application 

Zoning Variance  
 

 A zoning variance is a request to deviate from the requirements in the Green Mountain Falls Land Use 
and Zoning Code, as established in §16-709.  

 This checklist is a guide to submitting a complete application and is not a substitute for all provisions 
in GMF Municipal Code. Applicants are responsible for reviewing and understanding the Code. 

 Complete submittals will receive a minimum staff review time of thirty (30) days before appearing on 
a Planning Commission agenda  

Applicant: 

Address: 

E-Mail: 

Phone: 

Owner: 

Address: 

E-mail: 

Phone: 

 
Address: 

Zoning Designation: Lot Size: 

Hillside Overlay zone?  Yes  No Land Survey Included: Yes           No  

APPLICANT’S STATEMENT: I understand the procedures that apply to my request and acknowledge an incomplete 
application will not be processed or scheduled for public hearing until such time it is complete. GMF Town Staff’s acceptance 
of the application, the payment of fees, and submittal of accompanying materials does not constitute completeness. I further 
agree to reimburse the city for technical and professional consulting expenses that may be incurred during the review of my 
request. Failure to reimburse the Town for invoiced expenses constitutes an incomplete application.  
Certification: The undersigned applicant certifies under oath and under penalties of perjury that the information found in the 
application is true and accurate to the best of their knowledge.  
 

Applicant Signature       Date                                    

Owner Signature         Date    

Owner Signature         Date    

This document can be signed electronically using Adobe Reader DC for free.  

  

General Information 

Applicant 

Property 

Certification & Signature 

Don Hays
3207 Crockett St., Granbury, TX 76049

texas2d@yahoo.com
817-313-0283
Don Hays
3207 Crockett St., Granbury, TX 76049

texas2d@yahoo.com
817-313-0283

10565 Foster Ave., Green Mountain Falls, CO  80819
Non-Conf R-1 3456 Sq. Ft.

08/03/2023
08/03/2023

/S/Don Hays
/S/Don Hays



Justification for Proposed Improvement to Property at 10565 Foster Ave, Green Mountain Falls, CO  

80819 

 

Cabin Appearance – Although significant renovations have occurred on the inside of the cabin, this cabin 

has been an eyesore for years.  Left abandoned and lawn not kept, the outdoor improvements will 

dramatically improve the view of the property from the streets, downtown and around the lake 

Yard Maintenance and Erosion – No maintenance appears to be done to the lawn or to keep the yard 

from significant erosion problems.  Removal of trees from this lot has in the last couple of years which 

has increased the erosion problem.   The proposed deck would prevent further erosion of a significant 

portion of the front yard caused by direct rain and hail. 

Safety – Fixing the steps and the transition from the street to the stairs will allow my wife and others to 

more safely traverse the accent to the cabin. 

 

/s/ Don Hays 10/03/2023 

 

 



IMPRO�ENT LOCATION CERTIFICATE 

SCALE: 1 • - 20' 

CROSSED PATHS SURVEYING 
SERVICES, iNC. has relied upon the 
COMMl™ENT for TITLE INSURANCE 

issued by EMPIRE TITLE OF 
WOODLAND PARK, File No. 

52731ECS, with regard to ony 
recorded easements, rights-of-way 
offecting the subject property. No 

odaitionol research regarding the 
existence of easements or 

restrictions of record hos been 
preformed by CROSSED PATHS 

SURVEYING SERVICES, INC. 

Due to the consumer thinking on 
ILC is o PROPERTY BOUNDARY 
SURVEY the Board of Llcensu,e 
repealed 6.6.2 (c), Major 
improvement locations shall be 
shown with dimensions to the 
nearest property lines, with a 
min'mum of two dimensions shown, 
and shall be sufficie�t to locate 
structures. 

10565 FOSTER AVENUE 

Found 
Comer-

(60' ROW) 

1-Story 
House 

46.7 
(46' PLAT) 

BOUNDARY SURVEY 
RECOMENDED . . . 

found Bolt as shown 
hereon may or moy 

not be o corner; 
found Comers ot 9.5' 
create o question of 

Senior Rights 

RECORD TITLE DESCRIPTION: 

le 

4.1' 

The Northwesterly 46 feet of the Northeoster1y 75 feet of lot 3, Block 11. 
Green Mountain Falls Addition No. 1, County of El Paso, State of Colorado 

I HEREBY CERTIFY n-tAT lHIS IMPRO\/EMENT LOCATION CERTIFICATE WAS PREPARED FOR 

EMPIRE TITl£ OF Y«>ODlANO PARK 

iHAT IT IS NOT A LAND SURVEY PLAT OR IMPROVEMENT SURVEY PLAT, AND n-tAT IT IS NOT TO BE RELIED 
UPON FOR n-fE ESTABUSHMENT OF FENCE, BUILDING, OR OTHER FUlURE IMPRO'-£MENT LINES. 

I FURTHER CERTIFY n-fAT THE IMPRO\/EMENTS ON THE ABOIIE DESCRIBED PARCEL ON THIS DATE. 

January 16, 2018 

EXCEPT UTILITY CONNECTIONS. ARE ENTIRELY WITHIN THE BOUNDARIES OF lHE PARC£L, EXCEPT AS SHOv.,,j, 
n-tAr THERE ARE NO ENCROACHMENTS UPON THE DESCRIBED PREMISES BY IMPROVEMENTS ON ANY 

ADJOINING PREMISES, EXCEPT AS l�Dl�TED, AND lH,._T THERE IS NO APPARENT EviOENCE OR SIGN Of ANY 
EASEMENT CROSSING �"RDENING PART OF SAJD PARCEL, EXCEPT AS N OTED. 

,,7 

CROSSED PATHS 
SURVEYING SERVICES, INC. 

P.O. BoX 49742 
COLORADO SPRINGS, 

COLORADO 80849 
(7t9) 661-2349

ji.mpls@xpa.th1.nc. com

J06 NO. 1412220C.10 DA'IE': 01/16/18 

Exhibit A, Subject Property



N 
N 
0 
N 
ro� 
cii 
,; 

lCl 

i...: 
ai 
:i: 
X 
w 

w 
Cf) 
<( 
w 

N 
0) 

.' LEGEND: 
A FOUND 5/8" REBAR 
© FOUND REBAR AND 1-1 /2" ALUMINUM CAP 

STAMPED "D&B CO PLS 22575" 
� POWER/UTILITY POLE 
� ELECTRIC METER 
® SEPTIC LIDS 
(§ SEWER CLEAN OUT 

--FENCE 
- -OVERHEAD ELECTRIC / O.H. UTILITY LINE
�STONE
0ASPHAL�- - --

-----

------

EASEMENT EXHIBIT 
10565 FOSTER AVENUE 

GREEN MOUNTAIN FAbLS 
EL PASO COUNTY, COLORAW -----. 

SE'LY CORNER 

EASEMENT CONTAINS 
554 Square Feet 
(0.01 ACRES) ± 

I 

I 

I 

40' 

I 

THIS EXHIBIT DOES NOT REPRESENT A 

MONUMENTED SURVEY AND IS INTENDED TO 

Lo DEPICT THE ATTACHED PROPERTY DESCRIPTION. 

R AIV\PART

SURVEYS 
P.O. Box 5101 
Woodland Park, CO. 80866 
(719) 687-0920

Proposed Deck (cross-hatched area) and Proposed Easement Area



/h 

I 

Exhibit B, Easement Area

julie.esterl
Rectangle



- - - - · - - , 
------

Ji'O.SJ"'.£Jt • • .. • • • • f;."11 HY LINE / •. • • (5
o
' AV£Nu. • • •. • s· ,.-o ... . . R.o.wJ 'l: . a-

/ •
i?:IIAr

---

� 

14® 
I I ®

i* I () Rec. No. 220066040 

EXISTING HOUSE 

Proposed  Deck  

julie.esterl
Rectangle



Know what's below.
Call 72 hours before you dig.

N

N

SITE MAP

SHEET INDEX:

VICINITY MAP

GRADING & EROSION CONTROL PLAN
GREEN MOUNTAIN FALLS, EL PASO COUNTY, COLORADO

HAYS RESIDENCE

HAYS RESIDENCE DECK

321 W. HENRIETTA AVE WOODLAND PARK, CO 80866
PO BOX 221           (719)426-2124

C
   EATAMOUNT

   NGINEERING

STANDARD CONSTRUCTION NOTES:

“ ” “ ”

GRADING NOTES:

GREEN MOUNTAIN FALLS APPROVAL:

BENCHMARK

PROJECT CONTACTS

GRADING & EROSION CONTROL PLAN

PROJECT ADDRESS:

LEGAL DESCRIPTION:

BENCHMARK:

IMPERVIOUS AREA:

DEVELOPER'S/OWNER'S STATEMENT

ENGINEER'S STATEMENT

SITE

SURVEY NOTE:



Know what's below.
Call 72 hours before you dig.

SITE GRADING PLAN
321 W. HENRIETTA AVE WOODLAND PARK, CO 80866

PO BOX 221           (719)426-2124

C
   EATAMOUNT

   NGINEERING

LEGEND

N

NOTE:

HAYS RESIDENCE DECK



Know what's below.
Call 72 hours before you dig.

321 W. HENRIETTA AVE WOODLAND PARK, CO 80866
PO BOX 221           (719)426-2124

C
   EATAMOUNT

   NGINEERING GRADING & EROSION CONTROL
DETAIL SHEET

HAYS RESIDENCE DECK



















From: Douglas Bowles <dougb328@cox.net>  
Sent: Saturday, May 25, 2024 1:08 PM 
To: Town Clerk <clerk@gmfco.us> 
Subject: Variance Application for 10565 Foster Avenue 

 
 
May 25, 2024 
 
Green Mountain Falls Town Hall 
10615 Green Mountain Falls Road 
Green Mountain Falls,  CO   80819 
 
Attn : Town Clerk     clerk@gmfco.us 
 
Ref : Variance Application for 10565 Foster Avenue  
 
This to advise that we, the owners of 6885 Howard Street, do not approve of the referenced 
Application. 
 
A survey of our property, a copy of which is on file with the Town, will show that approximately 
10 to 12 feet of the westside of building improvements and the septic system are actually on 
our property. The chainlink fence which extends down the east side of 6885 Howard is not the 
property line. 
 
See : https://property.spatialest.com/co/elpaso/#/property/8308409017 
          https://property.spatialest.com/co/elpaso/#/property/8308409011 
 
We are summer residents and will be returning to 6885 Howard on June 17, 2024. 
 
We may be contacted at  719-684-2210  or  316-682-2446 
 
 
Douglas Bowles         
 
Linda Bowles 
 

mailto:dougb328@cox.net
mailto:clerk@gmfco.us
mailto:clerk@gmfco.us
https://property.spatialest.com/co/elpaso/#/property/8308409017
https://property.spatialest.com/co/elpaso/#/property/8308409011


�������������	
�����
�� �����
������
������������	�� ��! "#$%&'
(#)*+
"#$%&'
%,-(.��/�/ 0
�11��22! 3454
&
6789
:8
-
$,:9,8.
;'+
3<663=53>?@�A��/� ! 3447
9#$.B(
'8��C
�����2! 8DEDFGHI� / 0! =J���
K�! BLL>L6@�0��
��2A�/M�/� ! N.B8
#O
%#8
5
.'
O#%'+
"&*
.8
P#'8
-%Q
:#B
#O
%#8
5+
89
'%Q
#-
&%Q
%-
89&B&#O
8#
P#'8
'%Q
:#B
#O
'(%#8+
-$%Q
#-
'%Q
%-
#O
'(
%#8
3<
O8+
.-*
B
56<R
-&%Q
?7
O8+
89
-%Q
,-
'8B.,*98
%-
8#
N#"+
%#8
6
&S
N.B8
.'O#%'+
"&*
.8
'&
:#B
#O
'(
%#8+
B)-
-&%Q
.%*
%#8
%-
5>6
O8+
89
$%Q
TU7
O8
N.B.
8#
'%Q
%-
#O
'(
%#8+
B)-'$%Q
8#
.
N8
#-
'
%#8
%-
89.8
,'
6L
O8
$%Q
OB#P
'&
:#B
#O
%#8+
89
'&%Q
6L
O8
8#
N#"
"%;
55
*B&&-P#)-8.,-
O.%%'
.((
5������
����� �22�22�1
�����@� 1 V75+3LL V>+?3LWXM��Y�X� � V>63+L?7 V65+47L����� V><<+3?7 V67+>5L ������
����� V>63+L?7�22�22X� �
���� 3U<LL �Z�Y�
[��1�
���� 44?\�10
] 5 /̂�2�
̂����
���� 44?��_��
��2A�/M�/� BD̀ab
5
'cdef �Z�Y�
̂/�2�
̂����
���� LJ��M���_
��2A�/M�/� 'g̀hGH
ODigGf
BHjgkH̀cgDG @����
@�Y��
@/Y/ 0
���� Ll���
\�/�� 5T>4 �����
\�2�X� �
���� =�����/ 0
m /�2 5 /̂ /2n�1
\�2�X� �
����K�XZ��
�o
���X2 ? [���0�
��2A�/M�/� =K�XZ��
�o
\�1���X2 6 [���0�
���� =K�XZ��
�o
\��n2 5ULL p��M���
���� 6?L� �WK[@q
̂��W@l
�q�W�qK�W�@ �r��� �����
�ŝ� �	�����'HtuH̀aH
-uiFHe %D̀k
)jH .jjHjjiH̀c
BDcH .eHD PDevHc
wDGuH�xy��y���� �� z z�xy��y���� �� z z�xy��y���� �� z z��yx�y���� �� z z��y�xy���� �� z z��yx�y���� �� z z��yx�y���� �� z z��y��y���	 �� p�  ��
���/o_{
 �
������ z
'DGH
(DcH 'DGH
NegaH 'DGH
8f|H BHaH|cgd̀



���������������	

����������
����
���
�����
�����������
���������������
��������������
����
�������������
����������
��������
�����������
����
���������	���
��
�������������
������������
�
�����
������
������
������������
���������� 
�����������������������������!�����
�����	��
���������������"��
������������������
��������
����
������
�������������������������#$%&'�()*�++**�

,
�����-���������-�.�"��
����
�-�.������,
��/�012������3����4���/�5657������8���3���/�9:;<5:����=3�>�?��,�@A-4 +�B+) C"A�A,"�3�?=DE",=? #$%&'()*�+F**=>,�D�� �G�HD" I=�?��D= *�%+( � #$%&'()*�+F&B-��A��C�ID==A�8�@A-�"A�C�33? %$�(BB H���4� #$%&'+BF�&F%F=>,�ID==A�8-A�C�33?�D�� �G�HD" I=�?��D= *�%+( � #$%&'()*�+F&B8�A"-�@�?>D"AI?�?,���3� "?-D",-�J%F F&�)*B ?@K"�-��8>?�A #$%&'+B(�)*%%>"L=?�>=�L�3"HD�D4� "?-D",- M�*+% D�A �33���ID==A #$%&'(M%�+MMMID==A�8-A�C�33?N,�">"-��>�DL�C"D=� "?-D",- %F�M$) ��3L=D�?,���3=D� "?-D",-�8�A�I=D? #$%&'FF$�%$$$
OPQRST�USVRVW XYZW [\SVP]V�̂P_ỲabTPSRcPVR\S [\SVP]V�de\SY

(*���



���������������	
����	��� ����	������	������������������ !"#$	%&'"(%	)��*�*�+	�,,��-- ./01	23&24)55	$5	63"'783#	59:	1;0<=>�?��*�� @0A;A	B&$5)3	"C)�D	�����- 5EFEGHIJ��*�+ KL���	M� 300.0/>�+��	N�-?�*O�*�� 'P(#	<;	B5	&B	')(#	1A	B5	&B	(&5	.	7(4	@@	63))'	Q&8'5"R'	B"(($	"%%	@������	����� �--�--�,	�����>��, S.;:=00 S/:<10TUO��V�U��� S/WW:=;. S@=:.;0���� S./A:W;. S/@:W.0 ������	����� S/WW:=;.�--�--U���	���� ;X100 �Y�V�	Z��,�	���� @:0<0[�,+	\ @ 
*�-�	
����	���� @:0<0��]��	N�-?�*O�*�� 3Ê_̀	@	$abcd �Y�V�	
*�-�	
����	���� 0L��O���]	N�-?�*O�*�� $êfHI	BEgeHd	3IheiÎaeEH >����	>�V��	>*V*�+	���� 0j���	[�*�� @=/0 ����	[�-�U���	���� KN����*�+	k�*�- @ 
*�*-l�,	[�-�U���	����M�UY��	�m	���U- < Z���+�	N�-?�*O�*�� KM�UY��	�m	[�,���U- / Z���+�	���� KM�UY��	�m	[��l- @X00 n��O���	���� K� �TMZ>�	
��T>j	���TN�MT�> �op�� ����	�q
 �������� r�>>	�MN	��LTn	n�M����T�M	��>k� �op�� �	�q
 ������$IstÎ_I	'tgGIc (Êi	8hI "hhIhhgÎa	3EaI "cIE QEcuIa	CEHtI
v ��w��w���� �������� ��U-x>��+�l	���� ���������v ��w��w���� �������� ��U-x>��+�l	���� �����p���v ��w��w���� �������� x �������p�v ��w��w���� ������� L���*��	*�����-�	?��V�]�, �������p�v ��w��w���� �� x ��������pv ��w��w���� �� x ���������v ��w��w���� �� x ���������v ��w��w���� �� x ��������pv ��w��w���� �� x ���������v ��w��w���� �� L���*��	*�����-�	?��V�]�, �������p���w��w���� �� x x

$EHI	%EaI $EHI	yce_I $EHI	5dzI 3I_Izaeb̂



���������������	

����������
����
���
�����
�����������
���������������
��������������
����
�������������
����������
��������
�����������
����
���������	���
��
�������������
������������
�
�����
������
������
������������
���������� 
�����������������������������!�����
�����	��
���������������"��
������������������
��������
����
������
�������������������������#$%&'�()*�++**�

,
�����-���������-�.�"��
����
�-�.������,
��/�012������3����4���/�5657������8���3���/�9:;<5:����=3�>�?��,�@A-4 +�B+) C"A�A,"�3�?=DE",=? #$%&'()*�+F**=>,�D�� �G�HD" I=�?��D= *�%+( � #$%&'()*�+F&B-��A��C�ID==A�8�@A-�"A�C�33? %$�(BB H���4� #$%&'+BF�&F%F=>,�ID==A�8-A�C�33?�D�� �G�HD" I=�?��D= *�%+( � #$%&'()*�+F&B8�A"-�@�?>D"AI?�?,���3� "?-D",-�J%F F&�)*B ?@K"�-��8>?�A #$%&'+B(�)*%%>"L=?�>=�L�3"HD�D4� "?-D",- M�*+% D�A �33���ID==A #$%&'(M%�+MMMID==A�8-A�C�33?N,�">"-��>�DL�C"D=� "?-D",- %F�M$) ��3L=D�?,���3=D� "?-D",-�8�A�I=D? #$%&'FF$�%$$$
OPQRST�USVRVW XYZW [\SVP]V�̂P_ỲabTPSRcPVR\S [\SVP]V�de\SY

(*���



 

  September __, 2023April 2024 
 

CONSTRUCTION STAGING POLICY 

This construction staging policy addresses how the Town of Green Mountain Falls (the 
"Town") shall allocate Town-owned properties for staging equipment and materials for projects, 
with the goal of keeping Town property clean and orderly.  If there is conflict between this 
Policy and any Municipal Code, the Municipal Code supersedes this Policy.   

I. DEFINITIONS 

Staging as used in this policy refers to the storage of construction equipment, materials, 
supplies and temporary facilities used in the construction process.  While neither the Municipal 
Code nor Land Use Code specifically addresses construction staging, Municipal Code Section 6-
31 lists nuisances, to include refuse, i.e. “discarded building and construction materials.”  
Further, “all refuse shall be removed periodically from all premises in the town so that the 
premises are clean and orderly at all times. All loose, discarded or unused building material from 
construction sites shall be promptly removed or discarded by the person responsible for such 
work.” 

Rights of Way (RoWs) are Town-owned properties generally used to facilitate 
transportation.  However, the RoWs in Town are not limited by the plat on what they can be used 
for.  Therefore, RoWs can be used as the Board of Trustees (BoT) sees fit as long as it doesn’t 
prohibit traffic from passing through an area.   It should be noted that RoWs are not parcels and 
therefore requirements on parcels are not applicable to the RoWs in Green Mountain Falls.    

II. CONSTRUCTION STAGING 

It shall be the Policy of Green Mountain Falls that any particular RoW area shall not be 
used exclusively for the purposes of staging Town or private construction projects.  As part of 
this policy, the Town will weigh the benefits to the public and the practicality of the staging area 
before assigning a staging area for a Town project.  Although not RoWs, the Town may use 
Town parcels as staging areas. 

Developers and project managers must understand that the Town has limited staging 
areas on level ground.  Projects require active management to limit the amount and time of 
disruption.  High density, prolonged staging will not be allowed on Town RoWs and Mixed Use 
areas outside of the Public Works maintenance yard. 

Residents must understand that construction projects inherently have a level of 
inconvenience for the construction and staging area.  The Town does not support restricting 
construction if the Applicant has met the Town’s Land Use requirements. 

 

III. PROCESS 

Planning Commission recommends to Private Projects: If a private project desires to 
utilize Town RoW for staging, once the project has obtained appropriate approval, Town Staff 
will identify a location that best fits the needs of the Town and the entity performing the 

Formatted: Underline



 

2 
9/__/2023 

.DOCX 

construction.  Town Staff will require the Applicant to obtain a Temporary Use permit in 
accordance with Town Code and published Fee Schedule.  BoT or Town Staff appropriate 
staging location based on intended use.  See the Table below for location options. 

Once Town Staff or BOT has selected a staging location and communicated this to the 
Petitioner, the Town will post a physical notice at the staging site and post the information on the 
Town’s official posting locations.  If someone wants to appeal the staging site location, that 
appeal must follow the appeal process for a Temporary Use Permit.  mailed notices shall be sent 
by the applicant via first-class certified mail to all property owners as listed in the records of the 
county tax assessor’s office within 200 feet of the subject property, as measured from property 
boundaries. Notice must be mailed at least 30 days prior to the commencement of the staging 
location use.  Certified mail notice shall be returned to the Town.  Property owners have 15 days 
from receipt of notice to appeal the staging decision.  The staging projectIf an appeal has been 
filed, the Petitioner must wait to use the Town RoW commence if an appeal has not yet been 
heard and until the appeal has been decided by the appropriate authority.    

            Town Staff will confirm the staging user returns staging location to original or better 
condition.  

Public Projects:  Town Staff will determine the most appropriate location for the construction 
staging.  Since Public Projects are approved by the BoT, issues with staging locations shall be 
determined by the BoT.  The Town will post a physical notice at the staging site and post the 
information on the Town’s official posting locations. 

Table 

Location Area Available Pro / Con Arrangements? Considerations 
Behind Town 
Hall 

125’ x 35’ Need to level area 
Req. emergency vehicle 
access 

Coord w/ F.D. Steeper access 
Tight Turnaround 

Public Works 20’ x 80’ on 
right side 

Req. separate access 
Interrupt PW work flow 

Coord w/ P.W. Req. active space 
mgmt. 

Oak St. (old 
Town Hall) 

120’ x 20’ Level 
Close to neighbors 

Reqs sign 
removal 

Oak St. Bridge 
Small project, 
limited duration 

Oak St. RoW 90’ x 12’ Level  Oak St. Bridge 
Olathe St. RoW 145’ x 35’ (cur) 

90’ x 30’ (prop) 
Close to neighbors 
Overuse 
Impression 

Prop.: PRT add 
to Master Plan, 
beautify, 8 
parking spaces 

Adjacent to 
floodplain 

Rocky Top 150’ x 180’ Fenced, gated, easy 
access. 
Safety: Hwy 24 x-ing 

$ to lease area Outside GMF 

Pool Parking 45’ x 65’ Adj. to public park Coord w/ PRT Seasonal 
 

Formatted: Underline



 

3 
9/__/2023 

.DOCX 

In certain circumstances developers may work with private land owners to coordinate 
staging, given temporary land use permissions are granted by the appropriate authority.  by the 
Planning Commission. 



GMF Comprehensive Plan Update Proposal 
 

GMF PC Discussion / Recommendation 
 
Objective:  GMF Town Committees to conduct a midpoint update of the 10-year 
2019 GMF Comp Plan and to draft recommendations for BoT consideration. 
 
  GOAL 1:  Reconstruct GMF Town vision, aligning effort with goals. 
 -- Deliverable: updated Town of GMF vision. 
 
  GOAL 2:  Review Comp Plan progress, challenge assumptions, set 5-year 
priorities and 10-year aspirations. 
 
 -- Deliverable: updated Comp Plan Implementation status to include items 
recommended for addition or deletion. 
 
  GOAL 3:  Develop and prioritize feasible, essential capital improvements for 
2025-2029 prior to the Town adopting the 2025 budget. 

 
-- Evaluate Town needs and recommend efficient use of limited resources 
-- Deliverable: updated CIP inputs for area of responsibility to include items 

recommended for addition and deletion. 
 
  GOAL 4:  Develop strategic planning skills of volunteers serving on Town 
committees. 
 

-- Strengthen communication, teamwork, and public service 
-- Develop experience, conserve funding for future planning efforts. 

 
 
Proposed refined timeline- Not Later Than dates (NLT): 
NLT May 15:  Recommendation and timeline to BOT 

May 28: PC Visioning, create/refine/review templates prior to distro to 
committee chairs, members 

June-July: Workshops with committees: FMAC, PRT, PC 
July: Public information session 
August: Committee inputs to PC 
September:  PC review, comment, coord back to committees 
Mid-Oct: Committees refine inputs 
Oct 22: PC consolidate inputs to Town Staff 
Mid-Nov: Town Staff consolidated inputs to BoT 

  



PC Options  
Strategic Planning for Public and Non-Profit Organizations  

John M. Bryson (New York: Wiley and Sons, 2018) 

1. Initiate and agree on a strategic planning process.  

2. Identify organizational mandates.  

3. Clarify organizational mission and values.  

4. Assess the external and internal environments to identify strengths, weaknesses, 
opportunities, and threats.  

5. Identify the strategic issues facing the organization.  

6. Formulate strategies to manage issues.  

7. Review and adopt the strategies or strategic plan.  

8. Establish an effective organizational vision.  

9. Develop an effective implementation process.  

10.  Reassess the strategies and the strategic planning process. 

 

1. Initiate and agree on a strategic planning process.  What are we updating? 

Visions, Goals, Implementation Matrix, CIP? 

Currently 5 Visions, is this appropriate? (see below) 

2.  Identify organizational mandates.  PC Discussion and recommendation to BoT.  
Receive BoT direction. 

Sec. 2-162. - Powers and duties.  The planning commission shall have the powers and 
duties… to formulate and approve a master plan for the town and to make careful and 
comprehensive surveys and studies of present and future growth of the town with due 
regard to its relation to neighboring territories. The plan shall be made with the general 
purpose of guiding and accomplishing a coordinated, well-adjusted and harmonious 
development of the town and its environs which will, in accordance with present and 
future needs, best promote the health, safety, morals, order, convenience, prosperity 
and general welfare as well as efficiency and economy in the process of development; 
including among other things adequate provision for traffic, beautification, promotion of 



safety from fire and other dangers, adequate provision for light and air, the promotion of 
healthful and convenient distribution of population, the promotion of good civic design 
and arrangement, wise and efficient expenditures of public funds and the adequate 
provision of public utilities and other public requirements. 

  



Vision statements declare where your organization wants to be in the future, framed in 
an aspirational, forward-thinking manner. Visions should be creative, ambitious, and have 
a logical connection to the mission. This isn’t a road map (that’s what your strategy is for), 
but rather the destination based on your mission. Vision statements help organizations 
make strategic decisions, aligning effort with goals. 

How can you tell the difference? Mission statements are more externally focused, telling 
the world why the company exists. Vision statements can have both an external and 
internal focus.  A few simple rules to follow when writing your vision statement: 

Outline goals 5-10 years in the future 

Use words that evoke emotion and action 

Avoid words and phrases that do not show definite action – hope to, might, would like 
to… 

Use present tense – avoid past tense or future tenses – this is for the here and now to 
guide into the future. 

While a vision and mission can address more than one singular subject, and can be 
applied differently depending on the department, having multiple visions ultimately blurs 
where you want to go. 

 

Hampton County, SC 

Vision: “As one of the most progressive, small counties in the state, Hampton County 
seeks to uphold its… 

            • Vibrant Economy... 

            • Rural Quality of Life... 

            • And Sense of Community Pride...” 

Mission: “The mission of Hampton County Government is to provide quality public 
services in a timely and competent manner, and to work with the cooperation of the 
community and other local government units to create a vibrant and healthy physical, 
social and economic environment. Services shall be provided in a fair, respectful and 
professional manner consistent with available human, natural and economic resources.” 

  



City of Toronto, Canada 

Vision: Toronto’s vision is four-pronged: 

            • Toronto is a caring city. 

            • Toronto is a clean, green and sustainable city. 

            • Toronto is a dynamic city. 

            • Toronto invests in quality of life. 

Mission: To serve a great city and its people 

 

Kansas City, MO 

Vision: “Our local government will be nationally known for its transformative efforts that 
make Kansas City the diverse and sustainable community of choice for people to live, 
work, and play as a result of its safety; vibrant neighborhoods; business, educational, and 
cultural opportunities; connectedness; and vitality.” 

Mission: “The mission of the City of Kansas City, Missouri is to deliver quality, customer-
focused municipal services with an emphasis on public safety, neighborhood livability, job 
creation, responsible planning for economic growth, infrastructure improvements, 
transportation systems, public health, and the environment. In pursuit of this mission, we 
use data to make decisions and measure progress based on economic, social, and 
environmental factors.” 

  



GMF Comp Plan, Part II: 

Our history:  A rustic town that is celebrated for rich, multi-generational history, small 
community charm, and immediate access to an unmatched trail system. 

Our Health:  A town that proactively preserves and enhances the aspects of our narrow 
mountain valley environment, providing residents with a scenic, low-stress lifestyle. 

Our Economy: A town that promotes economic sustainability through continued support 
of our home-grown businesses, with expansion of strategic, small-scale, daily services 
that contributes to our character and resilience. 

Our Development:  An appropriately-sized, safe community, home to a mix of residential, 
commercial, recreational, and cultural uses that together, generate a high quality of life. 

Our Infrastructure: A town with an efficient, consistent level of public services, with a 
focus on neighbor helping neighbor. 

 

 

p. 28:  "important values were developed into themed visions…strong connection to the 
quaint charm of the Town while allowing access to Colorado Springs’ urban amenities; 
the prioritization of environmental health and hazards such as fire, flooding, and water 
quality; the desire to promote economic sustainability for the local businesses; and a 
focus on infrastructure and utilities." 

expand on the Town’s strengths as a world-class hiking haven, a popular tourist 
destination, and an important link in the Ute Pass regional community. 

subsequent goals and policies support each other to build a combined vision that creates 
a sustainable economy, healthy living, and a resilient built environment while maintaining 
the unique small town feel that sets Green Mountain Falls apart. 


	1. 2024-06-11 Planning Commission Agenda
	3.2. 2024-05-14 PC Minutes
	7.a. GMF-24-03 10565 Foster Ave Variance PC Packet
	GMF-24-03 10565 Foster Ave Variance Staff Report
	1a-10565 Foster Variance App
	1b-10565 Foster Project Cover Letter
	1c-10565 Foster ILC 2018
	1d-10565 Foster Approved Grading Plan
	Sheets and Views
	21-324 01-COVER GRDG-19-195 GRDG
	21-324 02-SITE GRDG v3-19-195 GRDG
	21-324 03-details-Details


	1e-10565 Foster Deck Plans
	2-10565 Foster Ave Easement Agreement
	3-Public Comment Letter

	7.b. GMF PC Staging Policy
	7.d. COMP PLAN PROPOSAL



